
Town of Camden 
 Select Board Meeting  

January 19, 2016 – 6:30 PM 
Washington Street Conference Room 

 
Select Board meetings are broadcast live on Time Warner Channel 22 

Select Board meetings are web streamed at www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me 
 

1. Call to Order  
 
2. Communications, Presentations, and Recognitions 
 

• Report of the School Superintendent, Maria Libby 
 
3. Citizen Comments (for items not on the agenda) 

 
4. Approval of Select Board Minutes of  January 5, 2016 
 
5. Select Board Member Reports 

 
6. Town Manager Report 
 
7. New Business 

 
A. Award bid for the inner harbor floats  

 
Background:   The budget included funds to replace the inner harbor float system this year.  
The floats, were more than 15 years old and need to be replaced.  We requested companies to 
submit a base bid for composite decking floats and an alternate bid for pressure treated 
decking.  We received bids from 3 companies: Custom Float Services of South Portland, Prock 
Marine Company of Rockland, and Shed City of Warren.    
 
Custom Float Services 
Base Bid: Composite Decking    $103,749 
Alternate Bid: Pressure Treated Decking $ 89,640 
 
Prock Marine 
Base Bid: Composite Decking    $ 159,593 
Alternate Bid: Pressure Treated Decking $ 140,160 
 
Shed City    
Base Bid: Composite Decking    $137,150.62 
Alternate Bid: Pressure Treated Decking $123,376.39 
 
B. Accept the resignation of Timothy Wooster from the Camden Conservation 

Commission 
 

Background: Timothy Wooster was appointed in July as a regular member to the Camden 
Conservation Commission.  He has since become a new father and his work location has 
changed which requires him to resign.   This creates an opening for a regular member of 
the Camden Conservation with a term to expire in June 2018. 

 

http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me


C. Consideration of renewal victualer licenses: 
 
A. Application of Owl & Turtle Bookshop/Café at 33 Bay View Street 
B. Application of Maine Stay Inn at 22 High Street 

 
Background:  These businesses have submitted complete applications and they meet the 
approval criteria. 
 
D. Licenses (Public Hearings) 

 
A. Application of Samuel Appleton, d/b/a Waterfront Restaurant at 48 Bay View Street 

for a Class I Restaurant Malt, Spirituous, and Vinous Liquor License. 
 
B. Application of Stuart Smith, d/b/a Lord Camden Inn at 24 Main Street for a Class III 

Vinous Liquor License. 
 
C. Application of James & Cynthia Ostrowski, d/b/a Inns at Blackberry Inn at 82 Elm 

Street for a Class V Malt, Spirituous, and Vinous Liquor License 
 
Background:   These establishments have submitted completed applications, have been 
inspected, and meet the required standards. 
 

Adjourn 
 

Convene as Board of Assessors 
 
A. Call to Order as Board of Assessors 

 
1. Consideration of abatement for the following personal property taxes for the year 

2015-2016 in the amount of $12.10. 
 
Background:  The Assessing staff continues to review records to ensure the assessments 
are accurate.   The business has closed. 

 
Adjourn 

***  Break *** 
 
 
Workshop 
 
Upcoming meetings/events:  
 
January 20 Mid-Coast Solid Waste Board 
January 26 Select Board Workshop 
January 30 Winterfest Week begins 
February 2  Select Board Meeting 
February 6 U.S. National Toboggan Races 
February 9  Select Board Workshop 
February 16 Select Board Meeting 



Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                                            

Town of Camden 
Select Board Meeting 

January 5, 2016   
    

Minutes 
 
Present:  Select Board Chair John French and Select Board Members, Don White, Leonard 
Lookner, Martin Cates, James Heard, and Town Manager, Pat Finnigan.  Also present were Fire 
Chief Farley, Police Chief Gagne, Camden Firefighters, and a member of the press. 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Board Chair John French called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 
 

2. Communications, Presentations, and Recognitions 
 
Fire Chief Chris Farley said the Fire Department strives to make sure fire fighters are 
well-trained so the department can deliver the level of service the citizens of Camden 
expect.  He said several fire fighters had recently completed training and course work and 
he wanted to recognize their efforts.  Chief Farley first recognized Assistant Chief Andrew 
Lowe for leading the Knox County Fire Training Academy for the past 4 years.  He said 
this required a lot of evening and weekend work, and sad Andrew had gone above and 
beyond the call of duty.  Chief Farley thanked Assistant Chief Lowe for his efforts. 
 
The Chief then recognized firefighters Scott Entwistle, Matthew Heath, Earle Holt, Kevin 
Mulvihill, and Jared Lindsey for completing the Knox County Fire Academy training 
program over the past two years.  The Chief also noted that Scott Entwistle, Matthew 
Heath, Earle Holt, and Kevin Mulvihill had participated in the leadership program offered 
by Southern Maine Community College and the Maine Fire Service.  Finally, Chief Farley 
recognized Mathew Heath for completing courses through the Maine Emergency 
Management Agency (MEMA) and Matt is now a certified Emergency Manager. 
 
The Select Board commended the firefighters for their dedication and their service to the 
community and gave them a standing ovation. 
 
Chief Farley then introduced firefighter Ed Geis who had prepared an application for the 
department to receive grant funds through the Assistance to Firefighter Grant program.  
The department was applying for funds to replace Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 
(SCBA’s), acquire an all terrain utility vehicle which would be used for  fighting 
woods/forest fires and assist with rescues in difficult terrain, and purchase a generator to 
upgrade the one in the public safety building.  The Select Board thanked Ed Geis for his 
work on the application and hoped that it would be successful.  
 

3. Citizen Comments (for items not on the agenda) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
4. Approval of Select Board Minutes of December 15, 2015 

 
Martin Cates made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented.  James Heard seconded 
the motion.   The motion passed 5-0.  
 

5. Select Board Member Reports 
 
Leonard Lookner, the liaison to the Harbor Committee, reported that the January Harbor 
Committee was cancelled; the next meeting would be February 4. 
 
Jim Heard commented that he thought the joint meeting with Lincolnville held the 
previous night had been productive and would lead to positive work between the two 
towns. 
 
Don White reported that the Planning Board continued to work on addressing short-term 
rental lodgings. 
 

6. Town Manager Report 
 
The Town Manager reported that after record warm temperatures on Christmas, the 
Snow Bowl finally was able to make snow and open the carpet lift and the double lift on 
January 1.  She said this was the first time people had been on the double lift and it 
received rave reviews.   Over the holiday weekend, in addition to season pass holders, 
more than 400 people bought tickets, and more than 100 people took ski lessons.   
 
  

7. New Business 
 

1) Award bid for purchase of a 2016 Ford utility Police Cruiser.   Police Chief Randy 
Gagne explained that this vehicle will replace the Police Department’s oldest cruiser:  a 
2012 Dodge Charger.   He said the Town had received bids from two companies:  Yankee 
Ford of $28,637, and Quirk Auto Group which submitted a base bid of $27,579 which was 
based on the exact bid specifications, and an alternate bid of $27,371.   
 
Chief Gagne recommended that the Select Board award the bid to Quirk Auto Group based 
on its alternate bid of $27,371.  He said the difference with the alternate bid was the 
lighting package, but he was satisfied that the lighting was suitable for the department’s 
needs.  
 
Don White made a motion to award the bid for a 2016 Ford Utility Police Cruiser to Quirk 
Auto Group in the amount of $27,371.  Martin Cates seconded the motion.   The motion   
passed 5-0.  
 

2) Authorize the Town Manager to enter into an agreement with the Town of Rockport 
to share Assessing services.  The Town Manager explained that Camden and Rockport 
had been sharing assessing services for more than a year.  Rockport Assessor Kerry 
Leichtman has been providing assessing services to both communities.  This had been 
done on an informal basis.  Ms. Finnigan said that both she and Rockport Manager Rick 
Bates felt sharing assessing services was working well.  The purpose of this agreement 



Page 3 of 3 
 

was to formalize the arrangement so it could continue.  The  towns would share the 
expenses of  
 
the position equally.  The Agreement is for one year which will automatically renew 
annually unless either Town notifies the other that it no longer wishes it to continue.  Ms. 
Finnigan said that there were a few changes to the agreement being recommended by the 
Town Attorney which would need to be agreed to by Rockport. She asked that the Select 
Board authorize her to sign the draft agreement with the understanding that she be 
authorized to make non-substantive changes recommended by the attorney.  

   
Martin Cates made a motion to authorize the Town Manager to enter into an agreement 
with the Town of Rockport to share assessing services and authorize her to make 
modifications as recommended by legal counsel.   James Heard seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed 5-0.  
 

3) Appointment of Matt Brown to the Camden Opera House Committee.  Don White  
made a motion to appoint Matt Brown to the Camden Opera House Committee. Martin 
Cates seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0. 

 
 Adjourn 

 
Don White made a motion to adjourn the Select Board Meeting and hold a workshop to 
discuss the FY17 budget and capital improvement plan.  Martin Cates seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

 
 

       Respectfully submitted, 

       _________________________ 

       Nora E. McGrath, Recording Secretary 



 

 

 
 
 

TOWN OF CAMDEN 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

INNER HARBOR 
FLOAT REPLACEMENT 

 

 
Town of Camden 

P.O. Box 1207 
29 Elm Street 

Camden, ME 04843 
 

DECEMBER 23, 2015 
 

Town Manager: 
Patricia Finnigan 

(207) 236-3353 

Harbor Master: 
Steve Pixley 
(207) 236-7969 

 
Public Works Director:  

Rick Seibel 
(207) 236-7954 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   

                 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 2 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 3 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

 
 
 

DIVISION 0 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
BIDDING AND CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

 
Scope of Work 
 
The scope of this Division includes Bidding and Contract information and requirements.  
 
Contents of Division  
 
   Section No.                 Section Title                            No. of Pages  
  
 00040 Introduction ................................................................  1 
 00100 Notice and Information for Bidders ...........................  1 
 00310.1 Bid Form ....................................................................  1 
 00510 Agreement  .................................................................  3 
 00850 Drawing & Additional Item Index .............................  1 
 00900 Addenda & Modifications..........................................  1 
 00950 Special Conditions .....................................................  1 
 01100 Float Specification  ....................................................  4 
 
   
  
 Appended Material: 
 
  
  
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 00000  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 4 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00040 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
INTRODUCTION 

 
  
1. GENERAL 
 

A. This CONTRACT covers the Inner Harbor Float Replacement located in the Town of Camden, 
Maine. This CONTRACT covers all work to be performed. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS 
 

A.  Definitions shall be as listed in Section 00510 Agreement. “OWNER’ shall mean Town of Camden, 
acting through or by its authorized representative. 

3. SCHEDULE 
 

A. Construction shall be substantially complete in accordance with the following schedule: 
 

Bids Due:   January 13, 2016 
Award Contract  January 20, 2016 
Commencement Date  January 20, 2016    
Completion Date  April 8, 2016 

 
4. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 

A. Bidders are advised of the requirement to maintain vehicular access and operations to the existing 
facility and adjoining drive. 

B. Each BIDDER is responsible for inspecting the site and for reading and being thoroughly familiar 
with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The failure or omission of any BIDDER to do any of the 
foregoing shall in no way relieve any BIDDER from any obligation in respect to its BID. 

C. Attention is drawn to the requirement to reconstruct all disturbed areas to their existing condition on 
the property. Reconstruction shall include but not be limited to replacement of plantings, surface 
materials, signage, finishes, etc. All work shall be performed as part of the LUMP SUM bid. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 00040 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 5 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00100 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS 

 
The Town of Camden will receive sealed bids for a project entitled: "Inner Harbor Float Replacement" in 
accordance with the NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS, CONSTRUCTION PLAN SHEET S1.0, 
BID FORM, AGREEMENT, and SPECIFICATIONS.  All of the bid documents are a material part of this 
NOTICE and are incorporated by reference into this NOTICE.   
 
The Select Board shall make an award of the contract by considering, among other things, the lowest price for a 
proposal meeting the bid specifications.  The Town of Camden reserves the right to waive any formalities, to 
reject any or all bids, or to accept any bid it considers to be in the best interest of the Town after considering 
quality, function, service, and initial cost, without obligation to consider price only.  The Town's decision in all 
cases will be final.  Tabulation will be mailed to vendors upon request. 
 
If a bidder finds discrepancies in, or omissions from the Project documents, or is in doubt as to the meaning of 
the Project documents, the bidder shall, at once, notify the Engineer, Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & 
Surveying, Inc. in writing; upon receipt of such notification, the Engineer shall send additional written 
clarification concerning the issues raised in the NOTICE to all prospective bidders. 
 
Deviations from the Contract Documents: All deviations from the contract documents must be noted in detail by 
the bidder, in writing, at the time of submittal of the formal bid.  Bidders are expressly informed that any 
material deviation from the contract documents may be a basis for rejection of the proposal by the Select Board 
at the time that the Board considers an award of the contract.   
 
Prices must be firm for at least three (3) months.  Project requires approval from the Town’s Select Board prior 
to contractor being authorized to commence construction.   
 
At the time of the opening of proposals, each bidder shall be presumed to have read and be thoroughly familiar 
with the construction plans in this BID NOTICE and all enclosures.  The failure or omission of any bidder to 
receive or examine any form, instrument, or document shall in no way relieve any bidder from any obligation in 
respect to the proposal submitted.  Any bidder to whom a contract is awarded shall be responsible for observing 
applicable standards for fair employment practices and work safety. 
 
For purposes of this BID NOTICE and all Project documents, the term "bidder" shall mean any person, 
company or organization submitting a Proposal pursuant to this NOTICE and the term "bid" shall mean a 
Proposal submitted by a bidder. 
 
Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope marked "Inner Harbor Float Replacement Bid" and received in the 
Camden Town Office at 29 Elm Street, PO Box 1207, Camden, Maine 04843 on or before 2:00 p.m., January 
13, 2016.  Prior to an award of the contract, no town official has been authorized to make any oral modifications 
or changes in the terms and specifications of this NOTICE.  

 
END OF SECTION 00100 

 
  



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 6 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00310.1 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
BID FORM 

  
The undersigned bidder acknowledges receipt of the NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS, 
BID FORM, SPECIFICATION AND CONSTRUCTION PLAN SHEET S1.0 entitled "Town of 
Camden Inner Harbor Float Replacement” respectively and hereby proposes to provide the work, which 
includes but is not limited to the construction and delivery of the floats including the float connection 
hardware, see Float Specifications for additional details.  The Town of Camden will be responsible for 
float installation.   Provide lump sum bid price for the work to be completed by the dates indicated on 
the bid schedule. 
 
            BID PRICE 
 
TOWN OF CAMDEN INNER HARBOR 
FLOAT CONSTRUCTION & DELIVERY          

 
BASE BID: Composite Decking    $___________________________ 
 
ALTERNATE BID:  PT Decking    $___________________________ 

 
 
Name of Individual / Company:  _______________________________________________ 
 
Address:     _______________________________________________ 
 
      _______________________________________________ 
     
Printed Name of Person Signing Form: _______________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:     _____________________ 
 
 
Signature:     _______________________________________________ 
  
 
Date:      _______________________ 
 
 
Completion Date Acknowledged   _______________________ (April 8, 2016) 
 
 
Addenda Acknowledged               _______________________ (initial) 

 
 

END OF SECTION 00310.1 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 7 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00510 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
AGREEMENT 

 
 
1. THIS AGREEMENT for the Inner Harbor Float Replacement is dated as of the ________ day of 

___________ in the year 2016 by and between the Town of Camden, (hereafter called "OWNER"), and 
_________________, doing business as a  ______________ hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR." 

 
2. WITNESS:  That for and in consideration of payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned:  
 

A. The CONTRACTOR may begin work on __________ and is to be completed by ___________ in 
accordance with the bid documents.  All construction dates will be contingent upon receiving approval 
of the pending permits.  It is anticipated that permits will be obtained prior to the listed construction start 
date.  If the start date is delayed the completion date may be extended if required.      

 
B. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

and comply with the terms therein for the lump sum of $  ____________.  
 

C. The CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect OWNER from claims 
set forth which may arise out of or result from the CONTRACTOR'S execution of the WORK, whether 
such execution be by the CONTRACTOR or by any SUBCONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, as follows: 

 
 Claims under workers compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee 

benefit acts; 
 
 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death 

of employees; 
 
 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease or death of any person 

other than the CONRACTOR'S employees; 
 
 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are 

sustained (1) by result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of 
such person by the CONTRACTOR, or (2) by any other person;  

 
 Claims for damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible property, including 

loss of use resulting there from; 
 
 Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the OWNER shall be filed with the OWNER, 

upon request of OWNER.  These Certificates shall contain a provision that coverages 
afforded under the policies will not be cancelled unless at least fifteen (15) days prior 
WRITTEN NOTICE has been given to the OWNER. 

 
 The CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at the CONTRACTOR'S own expense, 

during the CONTRACT TIME, liability insurance as hereinafter specified: 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 8 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

o CONTRACTOR'S General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance 
including vehicle coverage issued to the CONTRACTOR and protecting the 
CONTRACTOR from all claims for personal injury, including death, and all 
claims for destruction of or damage to property, arising out of or in connection 
with any operations under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, whether such 
operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by any SUBCONTRACTOR under the 
CONTRACTOR, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the 
CONTRACTOR or by a SUBCONTRACTOR.  Insurance shall be written with a 
limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 for all damages arising out of bodily 
injury, including death, at any time resulting there from, sustained by any one 
person in any one accident; and a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 
aggregate for any such damages sustained by two or more persons in any one 
accident.  Insurance shall be written with a limit of liability of not less than 
$400,000 for all property damage sustained by any one person in any one 
accident; and a limit of liability of not less than $400,000 aggregate for any such 
damage sustained by two or more persons in any one accident.   

 
D. SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 The CONTRACTOR may utilize the services of specialty SUBCONTRACTORS on 

those parts of the PROJECT which, under normal contracting practices, are performed by 
specialty SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 
 The CONTRACTOR shall not award WORK to SUBCONTRACTOR(S), in excess of 

fifty percent (50%) of the CONTRACT PRICE, without prior written approval of the 
OWNER. 

 
E. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following: 

 
1. Contract Documents and Specifications Packet 
2. Plan Sheet S1.0:Town of Camden Inner Harbor Float Replacement 

 
F. ADDENDA 

 
No. _________________, dated ______________________________ 
No. _________________, dated ______________________________ 
 

G. This OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in a lump sum at the satisfactory completion of the 
PROJECT in conformance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
H. This AGREEMENT shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assignees.  
 

I. Liquidated damages of $100.00 per day will be assessed against the contractor for each day beyond 
the stated contract period until work is complete. 

 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 9 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly authorized 
officials, this AGREEMENT in duplicate each of which shall be deemed an original on the due date written 
above. 
 
OWNER & ADDRESS FOR NOTICES: 
Town of Camden   
P.O. Box 1207 
29 Elm Street       
Camden, Maine  04843        
 
 
 
BY:             
 Printed Name of Individual Signing: 
 
Attest:             
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
___________________________ Address for giving notices: __________________ 

            
           
 
BY:             
 Printed Name of Individual Signing: 
 
Attest:             
 
 
 
 
               
                             (CORPORATE SEAL) 

 
 
 

END OF SECTION 00510 
 
 
 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 10 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00850 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
DRAWING & ADDITIONAL ITEM INDEX 

 
 
 
 DRAWING NO.                   TITLE 
   
  S1.0 .................    INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT  
   
   
 ADDITIONAL ITEM            TITLE 
 
  NONE     
 
 

END OF SECTION 00850 
 
 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 11 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00900 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
ADDENDA & MODIFICATIONS 

 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1  DESCRIPTION 
  A. No interpretation of the meaning of the Contract Documents will be made to any bidder 

orally.  Every request for such interpretations or questions, to be given consideration, must be 
received in the Engineer's office in writing (preferably via email) no later than the date specified 
in the bidder’s information.  Any and all such interpretations and supplemental instructions 
pertaining to General Bidders, will be in the form of written Addenda to the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, which, if issued, will be sent by the Engineer to all persons on record as having 
received a complete set of CONTRACT DOCUMENTS (at the respective email addresses 
furnished for such purposes).  Such Addenda will be issued not later than 48 hours prior to time 
set for opening of General Bids, 

  B. Failure of any bidder to receive any such Addenda shall not relieve such bidder from any 
obligation under his bid as submitted.  All Addenda so issued shall become part of the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.    

 
 
 

END OF SECTION 00900 
 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 12 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 00950 
 TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR MARINA IMPROVEMENTS 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL  
 
 
1.1  SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS  
  A. The Contractor shall, in good workmanlike manner, perform, or cause to be performed, all work 

and furnish all supplies and materials, machinery, equipment, facilities and means, except as 
herein otherwise expressly specified, necessary or proper to complete all the work required by this 
Contract, in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, including all sub-
divisions thereof, and in accordance with the directions of the Engineer as given from time-to-
time during the progress of the work.  He shall furnish, erect, maintain, and remove such 
construction plant and such temporary works as may be required.  He alone shall be responsible 
for the safety, efficiency, and adequacy of his plant, appliances, and methods, and for any damage 
which may result from their failure or their improper construction, maintenance, or operation. 

 
1.2  ACCIDENT PREVENTION  
  A. The contractor shall comply with all recommendations and requirements for accident prevention 

of the Associated General Contractors of America and the American Standards Association 
Standard A10.2.  The Field Superintendent of the Contractor shall conduct regular and frequent 
inspections of the site for compliance with safety regulations, stating in writing to the Engineer 
each month that he has done so.  

 
1.3  COORDINATION OF THE WORK  
  A. The Contractor and all his Sub-Contractors shall coordinate their work with all adjacent work and 

shall cooperate with all other trades so as to facilitate general progress of the work.  Each trade 
shall afford all other trades every reasonable opportunity for the installation of their respective 
work and for the storage of their materials and equipment.  The Contractor shall be responsible for 
coordination. 

  B. Each Sub-Contractor shall assume responsibility for the correctness and adequacy of his 
work.  Each Sub-Contractor shall be responsible for and pay all damages done by his work or his 
workmen. 

  C. The Contractor shall cooperate with, and provide access and working area to the Owner's 
Contractors for the performance of specific work assigned to them. 

 
1.4  AS BUILT DRAWINGS  
  A. The Contractor and all Sub-Contractors shall keep one set of prints up to date showing the actual 

work "as built" for all items of work.  "As built" drawings will be turned over to the Engineer at 
the completion of the work.  

 
1.5  CONSTRUCTION HOISTS  
  A. The Contractor shall provide and pay for hoisting machinery and/or crane service as necessary to 

lift all personnel and materials for all operations, both his and his Sub-Contractors, of sufficient 
capacity and speed to produce no delay in the completion of the work.  

 
END OF SECTION 00950 

  



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 13 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

SECTION 01100 
 TOWN OF CAMDEN 

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT 
FLOAT SPECIFICATIONS 

 
PART 1 – GENERAL 

1.01 GENERAL   
A. Contractor shall provide all necessary labor, tools and material to construct twenty eight (28) 

floats in accordance with the INNER HARBOR FLOAT CONSTRUCTION section. 
B. Contractor shall deliver the float sections to the site; Coordinate delivery with client.   
C. Floats will be installed by the client. 

 
1.02 QUALIFICATIONS 

A. Contractor shall have a minimum of three (3) years of experience manufacturing floats. 
 
1.03 SUBMITTALS 

A. Submit shop drawings and a list of hardware.  Drawings shall detail the following elements: 
1. All framing elements, including skids, main and secondary joists, spanner boards, decking and 

bracing. 
2. All hardware connection assemblies, including face and backing plates, brackets, hinges and 

float connecting pins. 
3. Flotation drum locations and mounting details. 
4. Calculations that show freeboard with no live load and with maximum live loads when drums 

are submerged.  Additional flotation shall be provided at gangway landings to maintain level 
float with no live load. 

B. Certifications and Warranties 
1. Timber material pressure treated certifications shall be provided. 
2. The float drum supplier shall provide a written warranty that certifies the product to include 

all labor and materials for repairs required during a fifteen (15) year period from the date of 
installation.  Warranty exclusion may be made for storm damage with sustained wave action 
in excess of three (3) feet. 

 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 

2.01 FLOATS - GENERAL 
A. Timber floats shall be of the following sizes, as shown on the plan:   

1. Fifteen (15) - 16’x3.5’ replacement floats  
2. Three (3) - 12’ x 3.5’ replacement floats 
3. Six (6) - 6’ x 24’ replacement floats 
4. Four (4) – 6’ x 32’ replacement floats 

B. Gaps Between Floats:   
1. Gap between adjacent deck boards at intersecting float locations shall be approximately ¼”.   



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 14 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

2. Float connection hardware shall be designed to have a 4” gap between intersecting float 
sections.   

3. Provide a 2x6 ledger flush with the top surface of the frame on the end of each intersecting float 
(installed between hardware).  Fasten ledger to frame with 3/8” diameter hot-dipped galvanized 
carriage bolts spaced 2’-0” o.c. (max). 

4. Install the end piece of decking at intersecting floats to bear on ledger and extend 3/8” beyond 
face of ledger.   

5. Resulting gap between deck boards shall be approximately ¼”.    
 

2.02 MANUFACTURERS 
A. Float drums, hardware and fasteners: 

1. Custom Float Services, South Portland, Maine 
2. Sea Port Marine Corporation, Chesapeake, Virginia 
3. Approved equal. 

B. Fendering:  EdgePro, Marietta, Ohio or approved equal. 
 

2.03 HARDWARE 
A. Structural steel shapes shall conform to ASTM A36 and be hot dip galvanized after fabrication in 

accordance with ASTM A-123.   
B. All exterior hardware including all meal brackets and timber connection assemblies shall be 3/8” 

thick (minimum) hot-dipped galvanized steel  
C. All interior connecting hardware including all corner pieces, connections and attachments to have 

backing plates shall be ¼” (minimum) thick hot-dipped galvanized steel.   
D. Connecting hardware shall be 3/8” thick plate with 2- and 3- tab (1/2 inch) connections to accept a 

1” diameter hot-dipped galvanized steel pin (min).   
E. All corner and joist construction joints shall be reinforced with exterior or interior hardware.  
F. Mooring chain attachment hardware shall be equivalent to Custom Float DH-CRLGSQ.  Provide 

one for each mooring chain shown on the plan. 
G. Cleats: 

a. Cleats shall be 10” long heavy duty hot dip galvanized equivalent to Sea Port Marine 10” 
Heavy Cleat.  

b. Two (2) cast dock cleats shall be provided on both sides of each 3.5’ wide finger float; Eight 
(8) additional cast dock cleats shall be provided on select main floats as shown on the plan.    

c. Cleats shall be fastened to the float frame with through-bolts and steel backing plates and 
shall not interfere with safe travel along floats. 

 
2.04 FASTENERS 

A. All hardware shall be fastened with A301 ½” diameter hot-dipped galvanized carriage bolts.  
B. Exposed bolts shall be carriage bolts or countersunk to prevent damage to boats. 
C. Decking shall be fastened to each framing member with (2) stainless steel #10 x 4” square drive 316 

stainless steel decking screws located as per decking manufacturer’s specification. 
 



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 15 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

2.05 FLOTATION 
A. Each timber float section shall have 16” (minimum) Premierfloat drums (or equal) through bolted to 

the timber frame with ½” diameter hot-dipped galvanized carriage bolts.   
B. Float drums shall be rotationally molded polyethylene shell filled with expanded polystyrene 

meeting Army Corps of Engineers absorption rate standards.  Minimum wall thickness shall be 
3/16”.hardware. 

C. Unless specified on the drawings, the number of flotation units installed on each float shall be 
adequate to provide a stable float platform that meets the following critera: 

1. Float freeboard (no live load) shall be 17” plus or minus 1”.  No timber material (with the 
exception of the skids) shall be immersed in water when no live load is applied.  

2. Aggregate float live load capacity (maintaining positive freeboard) shall be 30 psf. 
 

2.06 TIMBER 
A. Float framing shall be pressure treated (PT) Southern Yellow Pine No. 2; 1.0 pcf CCA or approved 

equal. 
B. Main members shall be nominal 4-inch wide; secondary and fascia members may be nominal 2-inch 

wide.   
C. Exposed decking, trim, fascia boards and other elements subject to human contact shall be pressure 

treated (PT) Southern Yellow Pine No. 1; 0.60 pcf ACQ or approved equal.  
D. Interior frame and drum joists shall be 4x8 (minimum); any intermediate joists shall be 2x8 

(minimum); outer skirt boards shall be 2x10 (minimum).  Spanner board provided for side impact 
strength in the width direction shall be 2x8 (minimum).  Spacing between framing members shall 
not exceed 24” on-center or specified minimum per decking manufacturer. 

E. Bottom Skids:  Two (2) sets of 4x8 #2 grade (or better) 2.50 CCA pressure treated (PT) southern 
yellow pine bottom skids shall be provided for each section of float.  Skids shall be suspended by 
2.50 CCA 4x8 and 2x8 uprights with galvanized hardware and bolts. 

 
2.07 DECKING 

A. Decking Material:   
a. Base bid: Decking surface shall be Correctdock composite decking (or approved equal).  

Decking shall be gray in color.   
b. Alternate: Decking surface shall be 2x6 pressure treated (PT) Southern Yellow Pine No. 1 (or 

better). 
B. Gaps between deck boards shall be approximately 1/8”.  

 
2.08 FENDERING 

A. Fendering:  Edgepro model 5008 dock bumpers (or equal; color: white) shall be included on both 
sides of each 3.5’ wide finger float and on select main floats as shown on the plan.   

B. Fendering shall be fastened with stainless steel #12 x 1 ¼” pan head screws (or equal) at 6” on-
center (typical).   

 
  



 

14-443                          Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement                         Page 16 of 16        
Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

2.09 FLOAT CONSTRUCTION 
A. Dinghy Ties:  Continuous dinghy tie-ups shall be provided on select main floats as shown on the 

plan.   
B. Construct per plan detail.  Provide a 2x4 pressure treated (PT) Southern Yellow Pine No. 1 

continuous member as shown; provide 2x4 pressure treated (PT) Southern Yellow Pine No. 2 
blocking as shown and at intervals indicated. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 01100 

 

 



0

0

0

S
C
H
O

O
N
ER

0

0

0

OH

TRASH SHED

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH

OH

OH

OH

OLD GARAGE, LLC
BK. 3999, PG. 93

MAP 120, LOT 298

UG

W
H
ARF

EXISTING
BUILDING

PLAN
TER

O
H

OH
OH

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH
OH

OH

O
H

OH O
H

CHRISTINA'S
WAY, LLC
BK. 3861, PG. 107

MAP 120, LOT 297

REBECCA GENE
CONRAD
BK. 1880, PG. 228

MAP 120, LOT 296

ZILLAH F.
FROST

BK. 1256, PG. 51
MAP 120, LOT 294

TOWN OF CAMDEN
BK. 250, PG. 151, BK. 307, PG. 154, AND TAX LIENS

BK. 10, PG. 537 & BK. 11, PG. 282
MAP 120, LOT 293

TOTAL AREA OF SURVEYED PARCEL=1.5± ACRES

TOWN OF CAMDEN
BK. 1663, PG. 280

MAP 120, LOT 283

BAY VIEW LANDING, LLC

EXISTING
BUILDING

O
H

O
H

U
G

U
G

UG

HARBOR PARK

6'x32'

6'x32'

6'x24'

6'x24'

6'x24'

6'x24'

6'x24'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

12'x3.5'

12'x3.5'

12'x3.5'

FEDERAL CHANNEL

6'x24'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

16'x3.5'

6'x32'

6'x32'

PROJ. NO.

ST
A

T
E

:
C

O
U

N
T

Y
:

T
O

W
N

:

C
L

IE
N

T
/P

R
O

JE
C

T
:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

SH
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

:

SC
A

L
E

:

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:


G

A
R

T
L

E
Y

 &
 D

O
R

SK
Y

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

, I
N

C
. -

 T
H

IS
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 N
O

T
 B

E
 C

O
PI

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

 T
H

E
 E

X
PR

E
SS

 P
E

R
M

IS
SI

O
N

 O
F

 G
A

R
T

L
E

Y
 &

 D
O

R
SK

Y
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 &
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
, I

N
C

.  
A

N
D

/O
R

 T
H

E
 C

L
IE

N
T

 F
O

R
 W

H
O

M
 T

H
E

 P
L

A
N

 W
A

S 
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
E

D
.

G
NI

Y
E

V
R

U
S

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
&

o
rs

k
y

D
ar

tl
ey

G
5
9
B

 U
n

io
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

 P
.O

. 
B

o
x 

1
0
3
1
  
C

am
d
en

, 
M

E
 0

4
8
4
3
-1

0
3
1

 P
h

 (
2
0
7
) 

2
3
6
-4

3
6
5
  
F

ax
 (

2
0
7
) 

2
3
6
-3

0
5
5
  
T

o
ll 

F
re

e 
1
-8

8
8
-2

8
2
-4

3
6
5

1
6
5
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

S
u
it

e 
2
F

 P
.O

. 
B

o
x 

1
0
7
2
 D

am
ar

is
co

tt
a,

 M
ai

n
e 

 0
4
5
4
3

P
h

. 
(2

0
7
) 

7
9
0
-5

0
0
5

S1.0
2014-443

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

C
A

M
D

E
N

IN
N

E
R

 H
A

R
B

O
R

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
A

M
D

E
N

K
N

O
X

M
A

IN
E

FL
O

A
T

 R
E

PL
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

PL
A

N

1"
 =

 2
0'

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
3,

 2
01

5
JN C

B
B

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:
1)  All directions are referenced to Grid North.

2) Elevations referenced to Mean Low Water.

3) Property lines are taken from plan entitled "Town of Camden Public Landing Boundary
Survey" by Gartley & Dorsky Engineering & Surveying dated August 20, 2010.

GRID NORTHS N

W

MAGNETIC 

LEGEND
APPROXIMATE PROPERTY LINE

PLAN NOTES:
1)  APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING FLOATS ARE SHOWN WITH RED OUTLINE.
    (BASED ON AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY PROVIDED BY THE MAINE OFFICE OF GIS.)

 PROPOSED FLOATS

EXISTING FLOATS

SURVEYED PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR

FEDERAL CHANNEL

E

12-23-15



 
ADDENDUM #1 
 
Project:  Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement Project 
Location:  Public Landing, Camden, Maine 
Date:    January 6, 2016 
Issued By:  Carmen B. Bombeke, PE 
Project No.:   10-374 
 
Subject:  Addendum #1 

Inner Harbor Float Replacement Project 
 
This addendum is hereby made a part of the contract documents in response to discussion 
points and questions submitted through January 6, 2016. 
 
QUESTION 1:  Flotation drums come in 36” and 48” widths.  Can the finger floats be increased 
in width to use 48” drums (resulting in a slightly larger float width)?  If not, can the finger floats 
be reduced in width to fit tight around the 36” flotation drum to avoid any cantilevered decking 
which can cause instability?  
RESPONSE 1:  The client would like to reduce the width of all finger floats to have the frame fit 
snugly around the 36” flotation drum.  We anticipate this will result in a float width of 
approximately 3’-4”.  This applies to fifteen 16’ long finger floats and three 12’ long finger 
floats. 
 
QUESTION 2:  4x8 skids are large for the finger floats.  Can the finger float skids be reduced to 
4x6 or eliminated altogether?  
RESPONSE 2:  The client would like to eliminate the skids on all finger floats.  This applies to 
fifteen 16’ long finger floats and three 12’ long finger floats.  All other floats shall have skids as 
specified. 
 
QUESTION 3:  Can 3” screws be used to fasten the decking to the frame instead of the specified 
4” screws?  
RESPONSE 3:  Yes, #10 x 3”square drive 316 stainless steel decking screws are acceptable.   
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
59B Union Street   P.O. Box 1031   Camden, ME 04843   Ph (207) 236-4365  Fax (207) 236-3055  www.gartleydorsky.com 



 
ADDENDUM #2 
 
Project:  Town of Camden – Inner Harbor Float Replacement Project 
Location:  Public Landing, Camden, Maine 
Date:    January 11, 2016 
Issued By:  Carmen B. Bombeke, PE 
Project No.:   14-443 
 
Subject:  Addendum #2 

Inner Harbor Float Replacement Project 
 
This addendum is hereby made a part of the contract documents in response to discussion 
points and questions submitted through January 11, 2016. 
 
QUESTION 1:  CorrectDock does not seem to exist.  Do you mean CorrectDeck?  What is the 
thickness of the composite decking?   
RESPONSE 1:  The manufacturer of CorrectDock/CorrectDeck has reorganized and the 
specified product is no longer available.  Duralife Composite Dock and Boardwalk (Duralife 
DockBoard) material (or approved equal) shall be used instead of the specified CorrectDock 
product.  Duralife Dock is fabricated 1.125” thick x 5.5” wide and is approved for installation 
with 24” on-center supports.  http://www.duralifedecking.com/composite-docks/  
 
QUESTION 2:  The written specifications call for fendering on select main floats as shown on 
the plan.  I can see the dinghy tie-ups on the plan but do not see where fendering is to be installed 
on the main floats.  Please clarify. 
RESPONSE 2:  FLOAT SPECIFICATIONS, Section 2.08 FENDERING, subsection A states: 
Edgepro model 5008 dock bumpers (or equal; color: white) shall be included on both sides of 
each 3.5’ wide finger float and on select main floats as shown on the plan.  The main plan indeed 
does not show fenders on any main floats.  The client would like fendering to be installed on the 
southwest side of the two 6’x32’ floats connecting the two spurs and on the southwest ends of the 
two 6’ wide spurs, as shown in the attached sketch plan.   
 
REVISION:  The client would like to revise the mooring attachment hardware and location.  
FLOAT SPECIFICATIONS, Section 2.03 HARDWARE, subsection F shall be revised to:  
Mooring chain attachment hardware shall be equivalent to Custom Float 6H416.  Provide one for 
each mooring chain shown on the plan.  Side mount hardware to interior frame structure for 
access from above (requires plank removal).  Provide structure for attachment as required.  
Mooring chain hardware shall be located to avoid contact between mooring chains and any part 
of the flotation drums or frame during operation. 
 
Enclosure: 
Sketch Plan SK-1 – Main Float Fendering and Revised Mooring Locations 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
59B Union Street   P.O. Box 1031   Camden, ME 04843   Ph (207) 236-4365  Fax (207) 236-3055  www.gartleydorsky.com 

http://www.duralifedecking.com/composite-docks/




Base Bid
Custom Float Services $103,749.00
     Alternate Bid $89,640.00

Shed City $137,150.62
      Alternate Bid $123,376.39

Prock Marine $159,593.00
      Alternate Bid $140,160.00

Bids were opened on Wednesday, January 13, 2016.  Witnessed by Janice Esancy and 
Scott Dyer of Custom Float Services

INNER HARBOR FLOAT REPLACEMENT





























































































From: Timothy Wooster [mailto:twooster@bhbt.com]  

Sent: Wednesday, January 13, 2016 12:15 PM 
To: 'Roger Rittmaster' 

Subject: RE: January 13th meeting 

 

Dear Roger, 

 

I am writing to inform you and the Select Board of my intent to resign as a member of the 

Camden Conservation Commission. When I applied to be a member of the Committee, I had the 

honest intention of being an active and contributing member, while helping out the community 

that I love. Due to a change in work location, along with the commitment of being a father to a 7 

month old, it has become increasingly difficult to devote the time and energy necessary to be a 

contributing member. I am confident that my seat on the Committee can be filled by someone 

who can devote the time and energy to better represent the Commission and Town of Camden. 

 

I want to thank the Commission and the Select Board members for giving me the opportunity to 

serve on what I believe is a very important Committee to The Town of Camden.  I look forward 

to hearing about future efforts and accomplishments going forward. If I can be of any help 

(volunteering) on any special projects, please keep me in mind.  

 

Best Wishes, 

Tim Wooster 

 

 

 
  
View our employment opportunities at bhbt.com 
 

  
This communication (including all attachments) is intended solely for the use of the person or persons to whom it is addressed and 
should be treated as a confidential Bar Harbor Bank & Trust communication. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, 
distribution, printing, or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you received this email in error, please immediately delete it from 
your system and notify the originator. Your cooperation is appreciated. Thank you. 
 

mailto:twooster@bhbt.com
http://www.bhbt.com/
















































































TOWN OF CAMDEN 
CERTIFICATE OF ABATEMENT 

Title 36 M.R.S.A. §841 

File Number: 
Tax Year: 

25-2016 
2016

Property Owner: WELLS FARGO BANK #150766
C/O THOMSON REUTERS
PO BOX 2609
CARLSBAD, CA 92018

Account:   PP 604 

Total Value Abated: $  800 
2015 Tax Rate: $  15.13__ 
Abatement:  $  12.10 

Reason: Assessment Error 

We hereby certify to Brenda Fisher, Tax Collector for the Town of Camden, 
Maine, that an abatement of property tax has been granted by us to the 
above named property owner in the amount of $12.10.   

You are hereby discharged from any further obligation to collect the amount 
abated as provided by law. 

Date: January 19, 2016   

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 

Original to be affixed to the 2016 commitment book. 


	Select Board Agenda 01.19.17
	4. Select Board Minutes 01.05.16
	NEW BUSINESS
	7a. Bid Award
	Inner Harbor Floats Bid
	Inner Harbor Floats Plan
	Inner Harbor Floats Summary
	Custom Float Services Bid
	Prock Marine Bid
	Shed City Bid
	7b.  Resignation from Camden Conservation Commission
	7c. Renewal victualer licenses
	Owl & Turtle Bookshop Application
	Maine Stay Inn Application
	7D. Renewal Public Hearing Licenses
	 Waterfront Application
	Lord Camden Inn Application
	Blackberry Inn Application
	BOARD OF ASSESSORS
	1. Abatement for personal property taxes



